
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

* Reporting to Cabinet
29 May 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 7 June 2018 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN: 

To note that Councillors S Boulton and M Perkins to be appointed Chairman and 
Vice Chairman of the Committee for the 2018/19 municipal year at the Cabinet 
meeting on 5 June 2018.

2.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22.

3.  APOLOGIES 

4.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2018 
(previously circulated). 

Public Document Pack



5.  NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 
12 

6.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

7.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

8.  RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME, DOUBLE YELLOW LINES AND 
VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN CROP COMMON AND CECIL CRESCENT 
AREAS, HATFIELD (Pages 5 - 24)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
which sets out the results of the informal consultation, the formal consultation and 
the recommended course of action. The residents and businesses at 634 
addresses were consulted as part of the statutory consultation. Three formal 
objections have been received.

9.  UPDATE ON 2017/2018 PARKING SERVICES WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 25 
- 74)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
which provides update on the current Parking Services 2017/18 work programmes 
(Appendix A and Appendix B).

10.  PARKING SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 75 - 84)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
which provides specific information regarding the financial and penalty charges as 
well as statistics relating to appeals, this is provided by a third party, the Traffic 
Parking Tribunal (TPT). In recent years, TPT has not provided the required 
information within a reasonable timescale. Therefore, Parking Services have 
produced this year's report with the most recent information. The relevant statistics 
will be added to the website once released by TPT.

11.  PROPOSED PARKING SERVICE RESOURCE AND WORK PROGRAMMES 
2018/2020 (Pages 85 - 90)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services), 
on an additional two year fixed term post created to assist Parking Services. 

12.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 



13.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 14 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

PART II

14.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman)
M.Perkins (Vice-Chairman)
A.Chesterman
J.Cragg
C.Gillett
S.Glick

G.Hayes
S.Kasumu
A Rohale
P.Shah
P.Zukowskyj

Co-opted Members:-
Tenants’ Panel Representatives

D.Fuller and M.Kandekore

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact G Paddan  
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 01707 357349, Governance Services Unit on 01707 357349 
or email – g.paddan@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part I
Main author: Matthew McCann
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton
Wards: Hatfield East

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 7 JUNE 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES)

RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME, DOUBLE YELLOW LINES AND VERGE 
PROTECTION ORDER IN CROP COMMON & CECIL CRESCENT AREAS, HATFIELD

1 Executive Summary

1.1 In November 2016, the Council delivered parking survey forms to all residents 
within the Birchwood area. Residents were asked if they required any resident 
permit schemes or double yellow lines. Birchwood was spilt into three areas. This 
report focuses on Area Three. See Appendix A.

1.2 Area Three is mainly residential, with some commercial premises on the edge of 
the consultation area along St Albans Road East. Just outside of the consultation 
area is Beaconsfield Road which has many industrial and office premises. Hatfield 
Railway station is only a short walk away. 

1.3 Residents within the consultation area had previously contacted Parking Services 
highlighting significant parking demand in certain roads, with commuters and/or 
local workers parking on the roads in the residential streets. This parking demand 
for on-street parking has created concerns with local residents, due to already 
limited on-street parking availability. 

1.4 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the formal consultation 
and the recommended course of action. The residents and businesses at 634 
addresses were consulted as part of the statutory consultation. Three formal 
objections have been received. See Appendix B.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections outlined in 4.2 and 4.4, in particular the 
issues raised in Section 12 around equalities and diversity. Having considered all 
the detailed issued in this report, including any proposed mitigating actions, 
recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the proposals (Appendix C) and the 
creation of the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for all the reasons set out in this 
report including 4.3 and 4.5.

3 Explanation

3.1 The majority response from residents in Cecil Crescent, Clarkes Road and the 
Stonecross Court section of Stonecross Road opted for a resident parking permit 
scheme. 

3.2 The rest of Area Three had a lower response, with minimal requests for a resident 
permit scheme. However, the majority response from residents supported the 
proposals for junction protection (in the form of double yellow lines) to improve 

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



2

road safety and visibility. A significant number of residents within Area Three also 
highlighted parking issues occurring on the verge and footway. 

3.3 The Council therefore proposed to introduce a Verge and Footway Order, which 
will enable Penalty Charge Notices to be issued to vehicles that are parked on the 
Verge or Footway. This Order can be enforced at any time and will help preserve 
the verges, reduce maintenance and improve accessibility for pedestrians.

3.4 On the 14 March 2018 the public notices proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, Birchwood, Hatfield) (Restriction of Waiting and 
Permit Parking Zones) Order 2018” and “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield 
(Various Roads, Birchwood, Hatfield) (Prohibition of Stopping and Waiting 
on Verge or Footway) Order 2018 were advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 
Notices were also erected in the lengths of roads affected. The closing date for 
formal objections was 6 April 2018. See Appendix B

4 Objections

4.1 The Council received three objections to the statutory consultation, these are 
contained in Appendix B. The objections raised was opposed to double yellow 
lines, or the resident parking permit scheme. No objections were received against 
the Verge and Footway Order.

4.2 One objection to double yellow lines was received from a resident directly affected 
by the proposals. Below is a summary of the grounds for the objection:

a) “In order to provide suitable and adequate parking facilities” …There 
seems to be a mistake that painting yellow lines will improve and provide 
adequate parking

b) Residents are at this time forced to park on the corner of the roads…and 
will have no available place to park.

c) Green areas…which could provide extra spaces

d) Vehicles using this area have a reason to be here

4.3 The reasons for moving forward with these proposals are as follows:

a) The reason of suitable and adequate parking facilities in this Notice’s 
advertisement is in relation to the resident permit scheme proposals not 
the double yellow lines

b) As in the Highway Code, parking should not occur within 10 metres of a 
junction as parking in this manner causes visual obstructions especially 
for drivers needing to exit the road. 

c) The Council are currently investigating if additional parking provision 
could be created in Crop Common and Cotton Field

d) See answer to b).

Page 6



3

4.4 The Council received two objections to the resident parking permit scheme, both 
from non-residents. Below is a summary of the grounds for these objections:

a) My employer does not have any spare parking available

b) Clarkes Road have houses with driveways which are not always used

c) Surely easily rectified with PCN enforced yellow lines over dropped kerbs

d) Parking in and around Ground Lane has always been difficult

e) All residences have driveways enabling residents to park within the 
boundary of their own residence

f) If the daily parking charge of £7.50 at the multi-storey car park at the 
station was reduced 

4.5 The reasons for moving forward with these proposals are as follows:

a) There are several businesses located near to these proposed permit 
areas, but not within those roads. One main reason residents were 
experiencing parking issues were due to local workers parking 
inconsiderately within the carriageway. As highlighted in the objector’s 
letter it is a requirement for businesses to provide parking for employees. 
Businesses can choose to expand their workforce, but in doing so, can 
cause an impact on local residential roads, which in turn struggles to cope 
with the demand. Parking demands by local workers can also go up and 
down dependant on whether staff choose to drive, even when other 
transportation and walking options are readily available

b) Driveways will not always be used at any one time, as residents may be 
away from their property, however, residents may face issues parking on 
the road side when they require parking during other points of the day. 
Introducing a permit scheme would encourage residents to park on their 
driveways where possible, so they do not have to purchase a 
permit/voucher during the hours of operation

c) Introducing double yellow lines in front of driveways would also stop 
residents from being able to park across their own driveway. Current 
legislation only allows parking in front of driveway dropped kerbs if the 
householder has granted permission. A resident parking permit scheme 
is more practical solution and will reduce this issue. 

d) No resident parking permit scheme or additional double yellow lines are 
included in these proposals for Ground Lane. The verge and footway 
order would not reduce any kerbside parking, merely stop obstructive 
parking on the footway where kerbside space is already available. 

e) Not all residential properties within the proposed permit scheme areas 
have driveways. The majority of driveways can hold a maximum of two 
vehicles. Households who have more than one car, rely upon the 
highway to park additional vehicles. Most of the residential areas were 
constructed many years ago when there was not such wide scale car 
ownership or demand for parking.

Page 7



4

f) The multi-storey car park at Hatfield Railway Station is a private car park 
managed by the local train company. Welwyn Hatfield Council have no 
influence on the pricing structure. It is often the case some commuters 
will seek free available parking even when car parking charges are 
relatively minimal.

5 Legal Implication(s)

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

6 Financial Implication(s)

6.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Council revenue budgets.

7 Risk Management Implications

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads. 

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are discovered 
during the monitoring period, the Council will investigate and carry out the 
appropriate remedial action.

8 Security & Terrorism Implications

8.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the proposals 
in this report.

9         Procurement Implications

9.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

10       Climate Change Implication(s)

10.1 There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in   
this report.

11      Link to Corporate Priorities

11.1   The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and 
Enhance the Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver Effective 
Parking Services

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

Page 8



5

12       Equality and Diversity

I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out.

12.1 The EqIA found that there is potential for negative impacts on Age, Pregnancy and 
Disability. 

 The double yellow lines will prevent parking at the junctions; this may 
force drivers to park further away from their destination. However, the 
Council believes that the benefits provided by added road safety at the 
junctions and reducing vehicles parking obstructing public footway 
outweighs any dis-benefits

12.2 However, if the disabled driver have a valid Blue Badge, the proposals will have a 
positive impact as they will be allowed to park on the yellow lines for up to three 
hours, and within the resident permit area for an unlimited period. 

12.3 Also for those who live within the permit areas who are pregnant or limited in 
mobility, the proposals will have a positive impact as parking is more likely to be 
found within their road and closer to the property during the enforcement hours. 

12.4 During the monitoring period (7.2) should any unintended negative impacts come 
to light, Parking Services will investigate and carryout the appropriate remedial 
action.

Name of author Matthew McCann 01707 357304
Title Parking Services Officer
Date 18 May 2018

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Page 13



APPENDIX A

Page 14



APPENDIX A

Page 15



APPENDIX A

Page 16



APPENDIX A

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD) 
(PROHIBITION OF STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR FOOTWAY) ORDER 2018 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD) 

(RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2018 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to arrangement made 
with Hertfordshire County Council) proposes to make the above Orders under the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 to introduce restrictions in Various Roads, Birchwood, Hatfield, as specified in 
the Schedule(s) to this Notice. 
 
Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Orders, the plans and the statements of reasons 
which may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, 
The Campus, Welwyn Garden City or viewed at www.welhat.gov.uk from 14th March 2018. 
 
General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Mr. Matthew McCann, Parking Services 
Officer, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City AL8 6AE (01707 357000); email 
parking@welhat.gov.uk  
 
Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn 
Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE by 6th April 2018, stating the grounds on which they are made.  
 
SCHEDULE 1 No stopping or waiting at any time on verge or footway  
 
Parts of Cecil Crescent, Clarkes Road, Cobmead, Corncroft, Cotton Field, Crop Common, Foxhollows, 
Ground Lane, Harvest Mead, Hedges Close, Homestead Road, Stonecross Road, Strawmead, Vixen Court 
and Wheatfield 
 
SCHEDULE 2 No Waiting at any time Restrictions - those sections of road(s) listed below as set 
out in the Order and accompanying plans  
 
Parts of Clarkes Road, Cobmead, Corncroft, Cotton Field, Crop Common, Foxhollows, Harvest Mead, 
Hedges Close, Strawmead, Stonecross Road, Vixen Court and Wheatfield 
 
SCHEDULE 3 Permit Parking Places, Zone B09 Monday to Friday 9am-5pm – those sections of 
road(s) listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 
 
Parts of Cecil Crescent. 
 
SCHEDULE 4 Permit Parking Places, Zone B11 Monday to Friday 9am-5pm – those sections of 
road(s) listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 
 
Parts of Clarkes Road and Stonecross Road 
 
SCHEDULE 5 Eligible Addresses for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Parking Zone Name PZ 
Code 

Eligible Addresses 

Cecil Crescent B09 Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 17, 18, 19, 20, 20a, 21, 
22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 36a, 37, 38, 
39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 48a, 48b, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 
54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60 and 61. Whitefield House numbers 1, 2, 3, 
4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, and 17. Four Winds, The 
Grange, Dawncott and 4 St Albans Road East. 

Clarkes Road B11 Numbers 1, 2, 2a, 2b, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 18, 18a, 19, 20, 20a, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 
32, 33, 34, 35 and 36. 

Stonecross Road B11 Numbers 1, 2, 3, and 4 Stonecross Court, Thormond Place, 
Parkgate.and Number 18 St Albans Road East. 

Page 19



 
SCHEDULE 6: Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Permit Type Limit 

Resident Permit No limit 

Resident Permit for motorcycle No limit 

Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of 2 vehicle registration numbers 

Visitor Voucher Minimum purchase 20 Daily Vouchers 
Maximum purchase 240 days per year 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

Special Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

 
SCHEDULE 7: Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Application Type Charges 

Resident Permit for disabled driver First permit Free 

Resident Permit for motorcycle £10 per annum 

Resident Permit for first car £25 per annum 

Resident Permit for second car £40 per annum 

Resident permit for third or subsequent cars £60 per annum 

Business permit £225 per annum 

Visitor Voucher 50p per day or 25p per day to residents receiving 
state pension 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit £20 

Special Permit Charged at council’s discretion 

Administration Type Charges 

Refund Parking Permit and Vouchers £5 

Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5 

Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5 - Whole Books of Paper Vouchers only 

 
*The charges may be amended by the Local Authority giving notice in accordance with section 46A of 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  
 
SCHEDULE 8: Refunds 
 

Permit Type Refund 

Resident permit for motorcycle Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for first car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for second car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Resident permit for third or 
subsequent cars 

Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Business permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Special Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

 
 
Ka Ng 
Executive Director 
Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
 
 
14th March 2018 

Page 20



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR PROPOSING 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, HATFIELD) 
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2018 

 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is proposing to introduce a resident parking permit zone and “no 
waiting at any time” (Double Yellow Lines) restrictions in various roads within the Birchwood area, 
Hatfield. 
 
The residents of the area were consulted in 2016 on proposed restrictions to prevent parking on 
junctions and congestion. Residents expressed concerns about commuter parking, local business 
related parking, lack of parking availability and obstruction to residential properties in the above roads. 
 
Having considered the duty imposed by Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council consider that it is necessary and expedient to make Orders for the 
following reasons:- 

 

 In order to provide suitable and adequate parking facilities 

 For the purposes of relieving or preventing congestion of traffic. 

 For the avoidance of danger to persons or other traffic using the road and 
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

 
The proposed restrictions are as follows;  
 
Parking Permit parking places, zone B09 Monday-Friday 9am-5pm 

 

 In parts of Cecil Crescent 
 

Parking Permit parking places, zone B11 Monday-Friday 9am-5pm 
 

 In parts of Clarkes Road, Stonecross Road 
 

No waiting at any time 
 

 In parts of Clarkes Road, Cobmead, Corncroft, Cotton Field, Crop Common, Foxhollows, 
Harvest Mead, Hedges Close, Strawmead, Stonecross Road, Vixen Court and Wheatfield 

 
 
The proposal has been subject to consultation with local and county councillors representing the area 
and Hertfordshire County Council. The local Police, Ambulance, Fire and Rescue Services, and local 
residents and businesses have also been consulted. 
 
Ka Ng 
Executive Director  
Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 

 
14th March 2018 
 

 
 

Page 21



Page 22



 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR PROPOSING 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, BIRCHWOOD, 
HATFIELD) (PROHIBITION OF STOPPING AND WAITING ON VERGE OR FOOTWAY) 

ORDER 2018 
 

  
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is proposing to introduce restrictions in parts of Cecil 
Crescent, Clarkes Road, Cobmead, Corncroft, Cotton Field, Crop Common, Foxhollows, 
Ground Lane, Harvest Mead, Hedges Close, Homestead Road, Stonecross Road, 
Strawmead, Vixen Court and Wheatfield, Hatfield consisting of a prohibition of stopping and 
waiting on verge, vehicle crossover and footway.  
  
Parking on verges and footways is an unnecessary obstruction and inconvenience to other 
road users and causes damage to the highway and underground services; consultation has 
taken place with the residents in the above named roads. The results of the consultation 
showed that a clear majority were in favour of the proposed restriction.  
 
Existing by-laws in force prohibit parking on grass verges, however current legislation does 
not allow their enforcement by Civil Enforcement Officers. 
  
Having considered the duty imposed by Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, it 
appears to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council that it is necessary and expedient to make 
Orders for the following reasons:- 

 

 For the avoidance of danger to persons or other traffic using the road and 
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

 For preventing the use of the road by vehicular traffic in a manner which, is 
unsuitable having regard to the existing character of the road or adjoining 
property. 

  
The proposed new restrictions are as follows;  
  
In parts of Cecil Crescent, Clarkes Road, Cobmead, Corncroft, Cotton Field, Crop Common, 
Foxhollows, Ground Lane, Harvest Mead, Hedges Close, Homestead Road, Stonecross Road, 
Strawmead, Vixen Court and Wheatfield, Hatfield 
 

1. No stopping or waiting at any time on verge or footway 
 

 
Consultation has been carried out with local residents, Hertfordshire County Council, 
Hertfordshire Constabulary, Fire and Ambulance Services and local Councillors representing 
the area.  
  
 
Ka Ng, Executive Director of Resources, Environment and Cultural Services, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
 
14th March 2018 

Page 23



Page 24



- 1 -

Part I
Item No: 0
Main author: Vikki Hatfield
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL COMMITTEE – 7 JUNE 2018
CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURAL 
SERVICES)

Parking Services Work Programmes 2017-18 

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Throughout the year, the Council receives many requests for parking restrictions 
and parking improvements, this can be through a number of different channels. It 
is important to manage the public’s requests and expectations. Producing a yearly 
work programme, which covers both parking restrictions and parking 
improvements, helps the Council to achieve this.

1.2 It is important for the Council to ensure a consistent programmed approach, as it 
assists in the efficient management of Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) work and 
providing transparency to the public.

1.3 Any objections received by the Council in response to the statutory consultation 
are considered by this panel. However, there are occasions in which no objections 
are received, when this happens the Traffic Regulation Order can be approved 
using officer’s delegated powers.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 The Panel notes the update on the current Parking Services 2017/18 work 
programmes (Appendix A and Appendix B). 

3 Explanation

Parking Restriction work programmes

3.1 Although Parking Services receive a number of requests from both residents and 
businesses to introduce or amend existing parking restrictions, a legal statutory 
process needs to be followed and completed before these can be implemented.

3.2 This is to ensure a full consultation with all affected parties is conducted and all 
comments and formal objections are fully considered before any changes, if 
required to the current parking regime are made.

There is are two consultations processes, the design stage, most schemes will 
have a number of informal consultations before progressing to the statutory 
consultations. Timescales for schemes are dependent on the feedback in each 
consultation. The Council needs to be able to demonstrate that comments 
received to the design stage/s are taken into consideration, and were possible 
proposals are amended as long as this doesn’t compromise the overall scheme. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



- 2 -

These changes will need further consultation with affected parties. Please see 
Appendix C which outlines the consultation process and the different stages.

Parking Improvement work programme

3.3 In addition to the above, Parking Services allocate a percentage of the total budget 
for Housing projects. These monies are for improvements specifically needed by 
housing on works that would not fall into our work programme. This year’s 
allocation is £25,000.

3.4 All Parking Improvements can be on either public highway, Council or on Housing 
land, dependent on which one will determine the approval process. All residents 
in the affected locations will be consulted on the proposals.

3.5 Improvements proposed on the public highway or which have an impact on the 
public highway need to be approved by Herts County Council as the highway 
authority. These works will be constructed by their own approved contractor, 
Ringway. 

3.6 Improvements on Housing/Estate land need to be approved by our own Planning 
Department, by submitting a planning application before going to the contractor to 
begin construction. This approval process can take up to 12 weeks before passing 
through to a contractor.

Implications

4 Legal Implication(s)

4.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

5 Financial Implication(s)

5.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Parking Services revenue and capital budgets.

6 Risk Management Implications

The risks related to this proposal are:

6.1 A risk assessment has not been prepared in relation to the proposals in this report 
as there are no new significant risks inherent in the report.

6.2 There is a potential for adverse or positive risk for the Council with regards public    
opinion for the management or introduction of new parking schemes.

6.3 The amount of yellow lining and parking control within the borough continues to 
increase, and this increase may in due course require additional budget to ensure 
lining and signage is appropriate for enforcement.

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications associated with the content 
of this report.

Page 26



- 3 -

8 Procurement Implication(s)

8.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

9 Climate Change Implication(s)

9.1 Key climate factors have been considered and are not thought to be applicable for 
this report. Parking Services do not envisage a change in the number of vehicles 
parking in the vicinity.

10 Link to Corporate Priorities

10.1 I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to three of the Council’s Corporate 
Priorities:

 Protect and enhance the environment – Deliver effective parking services;

 Help build a strong local economy – Revitalise our town centres and other 
shopping precincts and;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

11 Equality and Diversity

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out.  The creation    of 
Traffic Regulation Orders requires further statutory consultation.  An EIA will be 
completed during this process.

Name of author (Vikki Hatfield – 01707 357555)
Title (Parking and Cemetery Services Manager)
Date (21 May 2018)

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix AParking Restriction Work Programme 2017/18 
 

Cuffley  
 
The council have been consulting residents and businesses within Cuffley since 
2013. During the initial consultation, a number of residents requested the extension 
of the existing single yellow in a number of roads within the village.  
Further consultation with other roads (Church Close, Tolmers Gardens, Cranfield 
Crescent and Bacons Drive establish a majority response in favour of a resident 
permit schemes. These restrictions were introduced 2016-2017 and these have been 
monitored with a view to address any unforeseen displacement issues. 
 
There are three small areas in which residents have reported displacement due to 
the above restrictions, consultations with residents and businesses affected are 
currently at different stages: 

 Hill Rise (proposals have been approved and due to be introduced in the early 
part of 2018/19) 

 Station Road and section of Tolmers Road (informal consultation has been 
completed for both areas, the TROs is currently with HCC for approval, formal 
advertisement will take place in early 2018/19) 

 
In addition, to the above there are a couple of small issues which will be addressed 
during the above consultations. The project will be completed in 2018/19 
  
All recent consultation information can be found on the parking pages of the council’s 
website www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingincuffley  
 

Welham Green 
 
Residents and businesses have been consulted on parking changes since 2013, as 
the above two villages the majority of the issues have been addressed and the 
changes had already been introduced. 
 
Residents mainly commented on commuter parking in residential roads and the need 
for junction protection in some locations.  
 
Most of the monitoring consultations have been completed and a small number of 
areas mainly junctions have had double yellow lines introduced. 
The businesses in Travellers Lane have also been consulted and extension of 
double yellow lines have been introduced to improve safety and visibility. 
 
There have been some unintended consequences of some of the new changes and 
these will be addressed in the six months of 2018/19. 
 
It is envisaged that the project will come to an end during 2018/19. 
 
All recent consultation information can be found on the parking pages of the council’s 
website www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingwelhamgreen  
 

Page 29

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingincuffley
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingwelhamgreen


Appendix A 
 
 
Hatfield 
 
With a large University, and industrial area alongside a town centre and almost 
40,000 residents, there a number of issues surrounding the whole area. 
A Parking Study was conducted in March 2012, looking at the area holistically. 
Beginning with the town centre car parks. The consultation was concluded and new 
free waiting restrictions were introduced in March 2013. These were reviewed in 
March 2014, and some minor amendments were made. 
 
Hatfield Central and East were then investigated and a parking questionnaire was 
delivered in July 2014, to residents and businesses. The questionnaire requested 
general information about number of vehicles at each property, if they parked on a 
private driveway or on the road etc. Information about specific parking problems was 
requested. A total of 5,500 questionnaires were delivered and just over a 1,000 were 
completed and returned. 
 
The information was collated and analysed, which resulted in the Wards being split 
into five areas. These areas will be prioritised as below: 
 
1 The Ryde area (completed and operational) 
 
Residents and other affected parties including The Ryde school were consulted 
during 2015/16. The scheme completed a full comprehensive consultation and the 
Council’s Cabinet recommended the scheme to proceed to implementation. The 
resident parking permit scheme started on 3rd October 2016. 
 
2a Heyford Way 
 
Heyford Way is a small cul-de-sac off St Albans Road East. The majority response 
from residents was a resident parking permit scheme to operate Monday-Friday, 
9am-5pm. This went through a comprehensive consultation and no objections were 
received during the formal stage. The scheme commenced on 12th December 2016. 
 
2b Cecil Crescent, Clarkes and Stonecross Court 
 
Looking at the responses to the general questionnaire few requests were received 
for parking restrictions. Residents in Cecil Crescent had been suffering with 
commuter parking for some time. Other residents in nearby roads also reported 
inconsiderate parking by non-residents. Further consultation with all affected parties 
established residents were in favour of a resident parking permit scheme operating  
Monday-Friday, 9am-5pm.  
 
In addition, a Verge Protection Order(VPO) was promoted to addressed verge and 
obstructive parking taking place on pavement. 
 

Page 30



Appendix ABoth Orders were formally advertised in March 2018, any objections received will 
considered at future meeting of the Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel. 
 
2c Great North Road 
 
Another road in which residents seem to favour such a scheme was Great North 
Road. Those residents were competing for parking space with local workers to the 
industrial estate. Further consultation with the businesses established concerns 
about the removal of needed parking which would affect their workers from finding 
available parking close by. The plans have been amended to still retaining the 
proposed resident parking permit bays but reducing the amount of proposed double 
yellow lines, still addressing safety issues. The TRO is currently being created and 
will be advertised in the new financial year. 
 
2d Oldings Corner 
 
Tesco and other residents in the area have also reported visibility issues for 
pedestrians using the crossing point from Birchwood to Tesco on Oldings Corner. 
This is mainly due to larger vehicles which are using this road to park up for long 
periods and pedestrians are unable to see over or round them.  
There are some double yellow lines in place, but these have been requested to be 
extended to improve the sight lines. The Council will also be looking to restrict the 
types of vehicle which will able to park in this location. 
 
In addition, Tesco have requested assistance with addressing the issue of HGVs 
parking on the slip road close to the bus stop and recycling banks.  
This is causing safety and access issues for other road users and preventing the bus 
from been able to collect passengers at the bus stop (currently unenforceable). 
The TRO is currently been produced, once approved by Herts County Council this 
will be advertised in the new financial year. 
 
2e Birchwood area  
 
The rest of the residents living within the large estate have requested the council to 
address inconsiderate parking, junction and verge protection. 
These consultation will progress in the new financial year. 
 
All recent consultation information can be found on the parking pages of the council’s 
website www.welhat.gov.uk/birchwoodparking   
   
3a Lemsford Road area 
 
This area was geographically split by Lemsford Road itself, so this was broken down 
to two smaller schemes. One close to the Galleria and the second north of the town 
centre. In the Galleria area the responses from residents to the general 
questionnaire and requests received since, suggested there was an issue with visitor 
to the Galleria using the residential roads to park in, rather than pay for parking in the 
large parking areas at the Galleria. 
 

Page 31

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/birchwoodparking


Appendix AThe properties in these roads had limited off-street parking and residents relied on 
parking on the road. During 2016/17 a full comprehensive consultation took place 
with all affected parties and the majority response opted for a resident parking permit 
scheme, to operate Monday-Saturday between 8am-6pm. This was formally 
advertised and no objections were received in response to this. Due to this the 
scheme was approved under Officer’s Delegated Powers and became operational in 
July 2017.  
 
During the monitoring period, a number of unintended consequences occurred in 
response to the changes to the parking restrictions. Notably safety concerns on St 
Albans Road, which were investigated and proposals to extend the currently double 
yellow lines in some areas to improve the safety for all roads users. This was 
finalised and formally advertised in November 2017. Again no objections were 
received and this was approved under Officer’s Delegated Powers and amended in 
and became operationally in March 2018. 
 
3b Lemsford Road and French Horn Lane Areas 
 
The remainder of this area, along with French Horn Lane area were placed on hold 
due to further developments in Hatfield town centre which needed to be confirmed 
before progressing consultation with all affected parties. 
 
The Council were fortunate to apply and receive funding to create a Multi-Storey Car 
Park (MSCP) in the town centre, the site chosen was The Common which is has an 
existing surface car park. The proposal suggested that an MSCP could be 
constructed to replace  all the existing parking provision currently available in the  
five car parks in the town centre. The MSCP would release the existing surface car 
parks for much needed re-development. They could be used for increasing housing, 
leisure and retail facilities. 
 
Construction of the MSCP will temporarily reduce the number of parking spaces in 
the town centre. To reduce the possible side effects of parking congestion in the 
surrounding area, the council extended the parking consultation to the Aldykes area   
between Cavendish Way, Woods Avenue, and Bishops Rise. 
 
Consultation letters were staggered, and hand delivered to properties in the 
remaining area in Lemsford Road and the whole of the French Horn Lane area by 
the end of January 2018. The closing date for the initial consultation was dated 3rd 
March 2018.  
 
The Aldykes area was approved by Cabinet in February 2018, residents and 
businesses received their consultation letters by the end of February 2018. They had 
a closing date of 3rd April 2018. 
 
Two public engagements were held at the Hub, White Lion House in the town centre. 
One was held in February and one March, to which a number of residents visited 
with officers to discuss concerns or ask questions about the proposals. 
 
The percentage of replies from the first two areas was very low, so the consultation 
period was extended to finish the same time as the Aldykes area. A number of press 

Page 32



Appendix Areleases were issued and published in the Welwyn Hatfield Times, as well as using 
social media to publicise the proposals before and during the consultation period to 
try and encourage affected residents and businesses to respond to the consultation.  
 
The replies are currently been collated and analysed before deciding what the next 
steps are. 
 
All recent consultation information can be found on the parking pages of the council’s 
website:  
www.welhat.gov.uk/lemsfordroadarea 
www.welhat.gov.uk/frenchhornlanearea  
www.welhat.gov.uk/aldykesarea  
 
5 Old Hatfield & Essendon – Consultation has yet to commence. 
 
More information can be found at www.welhat.gov.uk/hatfieldcentralandeast  

 
Handside 

 
Over 3000 parking questionnaires were delivered to all Handside residents and 
businesses in September 2015. This provided an opportunity to report any parking 
related issues they were experiencing in their roads. 
 
We received over 1200 completed questionnaires and the information was analysed. 
A ‘next steps’ report was presented to the Cabinet Housing and Planning Panel in 
March 2016, recommending to split the ward into four separate areas: 
 

1. Longcroft Lane and surrounding roads 
2. Welwyn Garden City town centre 
3. North of Barleycroft and Applecroft Roads 
4. South of the Ward 

 
1a – Longcroft Lane area 
 
After a comprehensive consultation the existing single yellow lines in all but four 
roads were changed to a resident parking permit scheme, to operate Monday – 
Saturday, 9am-5pm. The restriction in four roads kept the single yellow lines. This 
scheme became operational in March 2017.  
 
In addition, the Councils first Verge Protection Order was introduced to replace the 
antiquated verge parking bye-law. Enforcement officers are now able to issued 
parking tickets to vehicles which are witnessed to be parking on the verge, footway 
and dropped kerbs. This has proved to be successful and the Council will be 
progress such restrictions as and when consulting on other restrictions. 
 
The Council monitored the new restrictions for six months, a number of requests for 
junction protection were received. These were progressed and included in the 
Parkway consulted during 2017/18. 
 

Page 33

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/lemsfordroadarea
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/frenchhornlanearea
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/aldykesarea
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/hatfieldcentralandeast


Appendix A 
1b Parkway 
 
This consultation extended from The Campus to the Gosling roundabout. The 
current restriction varied from shared use parking bays to unrestricted and sections 
of double yellow lines. 
 
The increase in car ownership across the borough was creating issues with parking 
congestion. With drivers trying to find parking in roads which were never built to 
accommodate the numbers which are now using them.  
 
Parkway A 
 
In this section, Rooks Hill to Gosling roundabout the current restriction were section 
of double yellow lines at the junctions, but other than that it was unrestricted. 
This section of Parkway was heavily used and the junction with Stanborough Green 
was a cut through for residents and parents to and from Lemsford Lane. 
 
The majority of residents on Parkway have off-street parking provision within their 
properties, although the small parking area (facilitating the 181-189 Parkway and 22 
Stanborough Road) could be adapted to increase the number of vehicles able to 
park there. This would have to go through the relevant approval process with HCC 
and the Council’s planning department. 
 
To reduce congestion and improve traffic flow on the main road, the council 
consulted residents on proposals to introduce a single yellow line, to operate 
Monday- Saturday between 9-11am. The Council would investigate to possibility to 
adapt the small parking area and include the aforementioned resident in a resident 
parking scheme.  
 
At the same time the Council notified residents of its intention to introduce a VPO 
which would include the verge, footways and extended dropped kerbs. 
 
During the consultation a resident who did not have access to their own parking area 
commented that they would be adversely affected by the single yellow line 
particularly on a Saturday as they would have nowhere to park during the restricted 
times. As this was a council tenant, the possibility of installing a dropped kerb and 
hardstanding was investigated.  
 
Both proposals were submitted to HCC and the planning department which were 
subsequently approved. Both schemes will be constructed during April 2018. 
 
The resident parking permit, single yellow lines and VPO proposals were formally 
advertised in December 2017. Any objections will be considered at a future meeting 
of Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



Appendix A 
Parkway B 
 
This section, Rooks Hill to the junction of Barleycroft Road (including Honeycroft) 
currently had sections of double yellow lines at either end, some single yellow line or 
some unrestricted sections. Requests received for junction protection in Fordwich 
Road, during the six month monitoring period of the Longcroft Lane scheme were 
also included in this consultation. 
 
The Council notified residents of its intention to introduce a VPO which would include 
the verge, footways and extended dropped kerbs. As some residents were using the 
extended dropped kerb as additional parking the council recognised that they may 
not have adequate off-street parking provision, therefore the council promoted five 
parking bays to be converted into resident parking permit areas for residents.  
Two the proposed parking bays were already in place although unrestricted. 
The three other locations were only introduced after a site meeting with the Police to 
ensure they didn’t present any foreseen safety issues. HCC also had no comment 
with regards to the location of the parking bays.  
 
The remainder of the road and junctions off would have the single yellow lines 
replaced with double yellow lines. 
 
The resident parking permit, single yellow lines and VPO proposals were formally 
advertised in December 2017. Any objections will be considered at a future meeting 
of Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel.   
 
Parkway C 
 
This section, included Parkway Close and the north west of Parkway. 
Some residents in A 04 has reported for some time difficulties been able to find 
available parking in the shared use parking bays. This was due to those visitors 
coming to the town centre from the south, the first parking bays they would have 
access to were those on the north west of Parkway (opposite the church). 
 
Residents in A 03 (Parkway Close) in recent years had also reported difficulty in 
finding available parking spaces within the central parking area. 
 
Therefore, the Council considered merging the schemes. By restricting the share use 
parking bays to resident only in A 04, this would increase the number of parking 
spaces. Although the council are unable to guarantee available parking at all times, 
this solution would significantly improve the chances for both sets of residents to find 
parking within a reasonable distance to their homes. 
 
The council became aware of informal parking areas which had been created, using 
shared pedestrian footways. Also residents were using the extended crossovers as 
additional parking provision which is not what these areas were created for. They are 
for access and egress to resident properties and hardstandings. This was noticed in 
a number of sections of Parkway.  
 

Page 35



Appendix ADuring the consultation some residents objected to the removal of such parking 
areas as this would make it even more difficult to find parking spaces within their 
existing area. In addition, a number were opposed to the two schemes merging as 
they felt resident of the road would preference parking in their road rather than 
parking closer to their own homes. 
 
On request of some residents, further clarification on the extent of the Councils 
proposals and the consultation period was extended to accommodate any further 
comments/objection affected residents may want to submit. 
 
The merging of the resident parking permit and VPO proposals were formally 
advertised in December 2017. Any objections will be considered at a future meeting 
of Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel.   
 
Parkway D 
 
This section included residents in the south east part of Parkway (Church Road to 
Birdcroft). During the initial consultation the majority response from residents were 
happy with the existing share use parking bays and didn’t request and further 
changes.  
 
The Council notified residents of its intention to introduce a VPO which would include 
the verge, footways and extended dropped kerbs. This was formally advertised in 
December 2017.  Any objections will be considered at a future meeting of Cabinet 
Planning and Parking Panel.   
 
All recent consultation information can be found on the parking pages of the council’s 
website www.welhat.gov.uk/handsideparking    
 
2. Welwyn Garden City town centre 
 
In September 2015, survey forms were delivered to the businesses asking questions 
about how the current parking restrictions were working for them and their 
customers, and if they would like to see any changes. They were asked about their 
loading requirements and if they would like to see more loading facilities available to 
assist them. The response was very poor, with the Council only receiving 11 
completed forms. 
 
During 2016/17, Herts County Council contacted WHBC with proposals to improve 
the town centre for pedestrians and reduce vehicle congestion. 
 
Stonehills, is a cul-de-sac which is often congested with vehicles trying to locate 
parking spaces. 
 
HCC are proposing to move the Taxi Rank into Stonehills. Access to the rest of 
Stonehills will be restricted to pedestrians only.  All other vehicles will have to turn 
right in order to leave the area via Fretherne Road or Howardsgate.  
 
Two public engagements took place in June and July 2017, officers and members 
from both HCC and WHBC were attendance. 

Page 36

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/handsideparking


Appendix A 
HCC collated the responses received during these events, which suggested the 
majority response was in favour of progressing the scheme. Preparations are 
underway to trial the proposals to ensure this meets the brief and improves the 
network for all users, particularly pedestrians. 
 
WHBC carried further consultation taking into consideration the above proposals. 
Concerns were raised from all parties about the reduction of parking on-street. 
Therefore, the council introduced a 30 minute free parking period in Hunters Bridge 
and Campus West car parks in December 2017 to see if this would offset the loss in 
parking, and assist customers with providing short term parking if they need to pop to 
the shops/bank. The restrictions in Hunters Bridge car parks has been reduced in the 
evenings, this will provide more free parking after 7pm Mo-Sat and after 5.30pm on 
Sundays. 
 
Consultation with taxi drivers and other affected parties has taken place. The trial in 
Stonehills is anticipated to take place in mid-May- mid-June 2018. 
 
More information can be found the parking pages of the Councils website: 
www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingwgctc   
Details on HCC proposals can be found on their website:  
www.hertfordsire.gov.uk/wgcconsultation 
 
Handside areas 2 and 3 
 
Looking at the responses to the general questionnaire there were some roads which 
indicated they were happy with the current restrictions. Many of the responses were 
asking for the verge parking to be addressed. 
 
Therefore, it was decided to consult all affected parties at the same time. 
Consultation letters will be hand delivered during April 2018 to all properties which 
will include plans of the existing restrictions and the areas which the proposed VPO 
would cover. A survey form will ask those affected to indicate if they would like to see 
any changes, and provides a number of options for them to choose from. 
 
As the VPO covers a large area, resident have been asked to advise if there are any 
errors in the proposals, and to mark those on the plans. 
A pre-paid envelope will be provided for them to return the relevant paperwork to the 
council. The closing date will be in mid-May 2018. 
 
The response will be collated and analysed, further consultation will depend on the 
outcome of this consultation. 
 
All recent consultation information can be found on the parking pages of the council’s 
website www.welhat.gov.uk/handsideparking  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 37

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingwgctc
http://www.hertfordsire.gov.uk/wgcconsultation
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/handsideparking


Appendix ACrookhams/Ingles 
 
A review consultation was held with Residents to ascertain if there was any 
restrictions required in addition to the ones introduced in October 2016. Several 
residents reported issues relating to school pick up where highway obstruction was 
occurring. In Ingles, a dropped kerb leading to the local shops regularly had vehicles 
parking across it due to the Double Yellow Lines stopping short of it. This was 
formally advertised and no objections were received in response to this. Due to this 
the proposals was approved under Officer’s Delegated Powers and will become 
operational in May 2018.  
 
On-line resident parking permit system 

 
Since the introduction of resident parking permit schemes in 2009, the Council have 
been using a system in which the residents have to provide copies of documentation 
that they live at the address in the permit area and that their vehicle is registered to 
the same address.  
 
This takes a period of time, for the documents to be received by the council, 
processed and payment obtained by the resident. Obtaining payment (if a cheque 
wasn’t provided) proved to be the most time consuming part of the overall task. 
Payments made by credit/debit card depended on the resident answering the 
telephone number they had indicated on their application form. It wasn’t unusual to 
have payment requests for at least a week before getting through to the resident to 
process through the Councils payment system. This delayed the permit from been 
posted and been received. The team managed to add the information on the system 
so the resident in most cases didn’t receive a parking ticket for not having a permit, 
but this process was anything but customer friendly. 
 
With the changes to technology residents began asking for a better, streamlined 
system which they could access outside of the councils working hours. 
 
The Council enforcement contractor (NSL) offered a new on-line system (Apply On-
line) which seems to meet all of the challenges faced by the Council and its 
residents. 
 
Some of the benefits are: 

 Payments are made by the resident at the time they applied for the permit and 
processed by the on-line system 

 Customers have to register and manage their own account and this could be 
done at any time 

 The permits are issued instantly as soon as payment was made, rather than 
waiting for them to be sent in the post 

 Instead of sending paper documents in, customers can upload scanned 
documents/or photographs of the documentation 

 They can register a list of favourite vehicles, so when applying virtual voucher 
for friends and family they only need to click on the relevant vehicle 

 Virtual visitor vouchers can be activated using any internet browser, whether 
on a laptop, computer, tablet or mobile phone. It also means vouchers can be 
activated by the account holder even if they are not at home e.g. Tradesmen 

Page 38



Appendix A Reduction in printing costs for permits and vouchers which are particularly 
expensive due to the scratch card element 

 The systems work queue would have a list of all pending applications and the 
parking team would be able to approved/decline applications in a matter of 
seconds  

 The information is available of the parking enforcement handheld computers 
and they are able to search vehicle registration for valid permits  

 As the system is paperless resident permits become more environmentally 
friendly, as paper is not used for permits and renewals are sent via email, 
removing the 2 way postage which was occurring before. 

 When permit holders become ineligible e.g. move out, the permit can be 
cancelled instantly, and the system will process the relevant refund.  
 

Welwyn Hatfield were one of the first customers of this new system, this meant the 
parking team were involved in the development of the system, particularly the look 
and feel that the residents would see. 
 
The Council recognises that not everyone has access to a computer or smartphone, 
so we still continue to operate a paper system for those residents. 
 
Since the system became operational on 25 September 2017, the number of permits 
issued by the on-line system compared to the old paper system is currently sitting at 
81%. Bearing in mind the system has not been operationally for a full year this 
provides a real understanding how residents want to carry out such tasks.  
 
This has reduced greatly the back office resource which has left technical officers 
more time to carry out their consultation duties, rather than the time-consuming 
administration of processing and taking payment for permits. Uploaded proofs stay 
valid on the permit holders account for up to 3 years, making it easier for account 
holders to click a renew button on the intervening years, and the ability for those 
renewals to auto approve.  
 
The website has been adapted to include a user guide which includes all the relevant 
information a resident needs to be able to register, submit evidence, process 
payments, add vehicles, changing vehicle details, adding a courtesy vehicle etc etc: 
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/permitsandvouchers  

 
Future improvements which could be introduced, may include: 

 Virtual vouchers activated by text or phone 

 Shopping basket experience, so residents can group all purchases into one 
transaction 

 The ability to link the permit system to camera enabled devices so 
enforcement officers can scan number plates for checking eligibility of 
vehicles in the permit areas 

 Car Park season tickets could be managed via the same system 

 The system is flexible in what time periods we can offer to residents, the 
potential is there to be able to offer other types of visitor vouchers e.g. hourly, 
weekly. 

Page 39

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/permitsandvouchers


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B
Parking Improvements 2017/18 

The parking improvement budget was initially created to assist those residents in 
council properties when proposed parking restrictions may leave few or no 
alternatives to be able to park within a reasonable distance to their home. 
 
In recent years the council have focussed on providing additional communal parking 
provision as these would benefits all residents rather than individual properties.  
This is mainly in response to the increase of car ownership throughout the borough. It 
is not unusual to see households which have more than two vehicles needing to park 
and only having capacity for parking for only one in the front, or in some cases no off-
street provision. 
 
Also, in areas in which single yellow lines have been in place and worked successfully 
for a number of years, residents are now requesting to change to a resident parking 
permit scheme, so they can park on the road during the hours of operation.  
 
As you will see in the tables below the cost of constructing individual off-street parking 
provision is significantly more than the communal spaces. However, this approach 
needs to be flexible  
 
The residents in Parkway, Welwyn Garden City were been consulted on parking 
changes. The majority of properties have off-street parking provision within their 
property. During this parking consultation a resident who didn’t have access to off-
street parking provision requested if anything could be done to assist him, as the 
proposed single yellow line would prevent him from been able to park close to his 
home during the days and times of operation. The surrounding roads already have 
some parking restrictions.  
 
As with all such improvements, Parking Services submitted a planning application and 
consult Herts County Council to see if this would be approved. Both applications were 
approved and the construction of the dropped kerb and hardstanding was completed 
in April 2018. 
 
Parkway, Welwyn Garden City Create vehicle hardstand and 

crossover 
£7423 

 
Communal parking improvements 
 
These are the project which runs long side the restriction work programme. At the 
same time as looking at the restrictions, the area is assessed to see if there are any 
options to create more communal parking provision. 
Communal parking areas have been created and are in the process of being created 
in the following locations below: 
 
 

Page 41



Appendix B
Location Improvement Cost £ 

Haven Close, Hatfield Create 3 spaces for residential use. £6,989 

St. Albans Road West, 
Hatfield 

Create 6 spaces for residential use. £12,648 

Branch Close, Hatfield Create 7 additional parking bays. £16,726 

181-189 Parkway, Welwyn 
Garden City 

Create 7 additional parking spaces 
and mark out remainder of parking 
area x3 bays. 

£17,845 

Dellsome Lane (Flats No/s 10-
16), Welham Green 

Create 8 parking spaces for 
residents. Widen service road to 
ease access issues. 

£18,490 

Cornerfield, Hatfield Create 9 spaces for residential use. £32,471 

                                                                                           Total Cost £105,169 

Total number of parking bays 40          (average of £2,630 per space)          

 

Haven Close, Hatfield - parking bay construction 

Before 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



Appendix B
During 

 

After 

 

Page 43



Appendix B
St. Albans Road West, Hatfield – parking bay construction 

Before 

 
After 
 

 
 

Page 44



Appendix B
Branch Close, Hatfield  
 
Before 

 

After 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



Appendix B
181-189 Parkway, Welwyn Garden City 

Before 

 

After 

 

Page 46



Appendix B
Dellsome Lane (Flats No/s 10-16), Welham Green 

Access road - before 

 

After 

 

  

Page 47



Appendix B
Dellsome Lane (Flats No/s 10-16), Welham Green 

General amenity area – before parking improvements 

 

After 

 

  

Page 48



Appendix B
Cornerfield, Hatfield 

Before 

 

After 

 
 

Page 49



Appendix B
Garage Blocks 
 
In 2016/17, the parking team acquired two garage blocks, both in Welwyn Garden 
City: 

1. Great Dell 
2. Caponfield 

 
In both sites the garages were beyond viable repair and they had asbestos. It was 
thought that the garage could be demolished and the area could be used for 
additional parking provision for local residents. 
Particularly in the Great Dell area, the council had received reports of non-residential 
parking impacting residents from been able to park close to their homes and this 
would be a way of providing some more spaces. Especially as this area was not on 
the Parking Services current work programme.  
 
Specialist contractors were engaged to demolish the garages safely taken into 
consideration that asbestos was in all of the garages. This was carried out in August 
and September 2017. Once the site was cleared then the area could be assessed. 
 
Lighting provision 
There are three lamp columns which are either in the garage site or on the entrance 
at the Caponfield garage area and this is adequate for this area. 
There was no lighting in situ at the Great Dell site so to ensure residents would use 
the area, this was investigate further. Currently there is a planning application to 
install a lighting column. 
 
Surface 
Once both the sites were cleared, although the surface was not is and state of repair 
there were some trip hazards which would need to be minimised. Quotes were 
obtained to resurface the areas. It was felt that this would also provide a safe 
environment and residents would feel comfortable using the area for parking. 
 
The resurfacing work will be carried out in the early part of 2018/19. 
 
Great Dell 
 
Demolishing the garages which provided 11 car parking 
spaces for residential use 

£16,720 

Provide electricity supply for x1 lighting column in new parking 
area. 

£5,000 

Resurfacing and marking out of bays of new parking area. £25,184 

Total cost (average cost per space £4,264) £46,904 

 
 

Page 50



Appendix B
Before 
 

 
 
After 
 

 
 
 

Page 51



Appendix B
Caponfield 
 
Demolishing the garages which provided 19 car parking spaces 
for residential use 

£21,600 

Resurfacing and marking out of bays of new parking area. £47,985 

Total cost (average cost per space £3,662) £69,585 

 
Before 

 
 
After 

 
 

 

Page 52



Appendix B
Housing requests 

This financial year has seen the following requests from Housing team for lining works, 
and also for improvement schemes at their tenanted properties. 

Total spend for delivering the schemes on behalf of the Housing team was £21,731, 
which has been broken down below: 

Dropped kerbs and hardstandings for individual properties: 

Location Cost £ 
Knolles Crescent, Welham Green £5871 
Broadwater Crescent, Welwyn Garden City £5598 
Total cost  £11,469 

 
Knolles Crescent 

Before 

 

After 

 

Page 53



Appendix B
Broadwater Road 

Before 

 

After 

 

 

 

Page 54



Appendix B
Increasing communal parking provision: 

Location Scheme Cost £ 
Home Meadow,  
Welwyn Garden City 

Creation of x1 additional 
parking area. 

£4059 

Heather Road,  
Welwyn Garden City 

Construction of an 
Advisory Disabled Bay  

£2640 

Total £6699 
 
Maximise capacity, by marking out the parking bays: 
 

Location Scheme Cost £ 
Guessens Road, 
Welwyn Garden City 

Mark out 13 bays in existing parking area. £200 

Talbot Road (Flats) 
Hatfield 

Mark out 8 bays in existing parking area, 
with associated yellow hatching areas for 
recycling/refuse bin area. 

£250 

Aldbury Grove Car 
Park, Welwyn Garden 
City 

Provide yellow hatching to prevent parking. £106 

Rowans (flats 26-38), 
Welwyn Garden City 

Mark out 9 parking bays. £106 

Bedwell Close,  
Welwyn Garden City 

Mark out 9 bays within existing parking 
area. 

£397 
 
 

Wickfield Close,  
Woolmer Green 

Mark out 21 bays within existing parking 
area/s. 

£398 

Home Ley,  
Welwyn Garden City 

Provide x3 Advisory Disabled Bays and 
mark out 14 bays in existing parking 
area/s. 

£250 

Home Meadow,  
Welwyn Garden City 

Provide x2 Advisory Disabled Bays and 
mark out 24 bays within existing parking 
area/s. 

£250 

Howlands House,  
Welwyn Garden City 

Provide x1 Advisory Disabled Bay, mark 
out 27 bays in existing parking area/s. 

£200 

Hall Grove, Welwyn 
Garden City 

Provide x1 Advisory Disabled Bay, mark 
out 4 bays in existing parking area. 

£200 

110 Knightsfield,  
Welwyn Garden City 

Provide x1 Advisory Disabled Bay marking. £106 

Longmead (Flats) 
Hatfield 

Provide x1 Advisory Disabled Bay marking. £50 

Drovers Way, Hatfield Provide x1 Advisory Disabled Bay marking. £200 
Homestead Court, 
Welwyn Garden City 

Provide x1 Advisory Disabled Bay marking. £200 

Graveley Dell, Welwyn 
Garden City 

Provide x1 Advisory Disabled Bay marking. £200 

Total (marking out 130 standard and 13 Advisory disabled bays) £3,563 
 
 

Page 55



Appendix B
Campus West Improvements 
 
In March 2018, Parking Services carried out enhancement works within the Campus 
West car park in Welwyn Garden City.  
 
Works carried out saw the resurfacing and re-lining of the entire car park, this 
included eight Advisory Disabled Bays using coloured surfacing. The pick up and 
drop off point at the entrance to the Campus West complex was also resurfaced, 
with additional coloured surfacing highlighting walkways. 
 
The existing signs and posts at the entrance/exit of the car park were removed and 
replaced with solar panelled bollards. 
 
Before 

 

Page 56



Appendix B

 
 
 

 
 

Page 57



Appendix B

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 58



Appendix B

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 59



Appendix B
 

 
 
 
During 
 

 

Page 60



Appendix B

 
 
 

 

Page 61



Appendix B

 
 

 
 
 

Page 62



Appendix B

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 63



Appendix B

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 64



Appendix B

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 65



Appendix B
After 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 66



Appendix B

 
 

 
 

Page 67



Appendix B

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 68



Appendix B

 
 
 

 
 

Page 69



Appendix B

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 70



Appendix B

 
 

 
 
 

Page 71



Appendix B

 
 

 

Page 72



Appendix C

Parking Consultation Process 

The process for changing or introducing new parking restrictions can take some time, as there 

must be a legal Traffic Regulation or Parking Places Order to support the restrictions. This 

may take several months depending on the number of proposals and the outcome of the 

consultations.  

Design or Initial Stage 

 Investigate the requirement or request for parking restrictions;  

 Draw up initial proposals from investigations;  

 Consult the local Ward Councillors and other interested parties;  

 Consult the public who are directly affected (residents/businesses) for their comments or 
suggestions – for a period of 21 working days;  

 The Council must record all responses to the consultation whether they are in support of 
the proposals or not. The responses form part of the legal process. 

 
This stage of the consultation process may be repeated more than once, this depends on the 
content of the comments received. Any changes to the proposals will be circulated to all the affected 
parties, allowing for a further opportunity to comment 

 

Notice of Proposal or Statutory Stage 

 Comments/suggestions from the above design stage may be used to adjust the final design 
for the statutory consultation. Just before the Notice of Proposal is advertised, a letter will be 
sent to the consultation area which contains a drawing of the final design;  

 It is at this stage that we invite and consider objections from the wider public. This is done 
by means of on-street notices, advertisements in the Welwyn Hatfield Times, as well as 
details being posted on the consultation page of the Welwyn Hatfield website 
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingconsultations  
All the proposal documents are made available for public inspection at the Council Offices, 
The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE; 

 Objectors have 21 days to state their grounds for objecting in writing. The Council must 
record and respond to all objections to the proposals. Parking Services will send a report 
and recommendations to the Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel (CPPP). Depending on 
the findings of the formal stage there are four possible outcomes as listed below: 
  

 The proposal is implemented as it was advertised;  

 The proposal is deleted (and thus not usually re-considered for two years);  

 The proposal is reduced and implemented. Proposals can be reduced but not 
extended without re-consulting with the amendments for another 21 days;  

 The Proposal is deferred for further consideration or needs to be re-consulted.  
 
The CPPP must consider all the objections received along with the results of the of the design stage 
consultations before making recommendations. The recommendations made by CPPP will be sent 

to the Cabinet for their approval. If the Cabinet approves, Parking Services will arrange for the 
signing and lining work to be carried out. Lining work could be delayed due to adverse weather 
conditions. 
 
A final letter will be sent to the consultation area and a Notice of Making will be advertised to alert 
the wider public to the intended start date of the new parking restrictions. 

Page 73

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/parkingconsultations


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Item No: 0
Main author: Vikki Hatfield
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL COMMITTEE – 7 JUNE 2018
CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURAL 
SERVICES)

PARKING SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

1 Executive Summary

1.1 This report provides information on parking services for 2017-18

1.2 The report includes specific information regarding the financial and penalty 
charges as well as statistics relating to appeals, is provided by a third party, the 
Traffic Parking Tribunal (TPT). In recent years, TPT has not provided the 
required information within a reasonable timescale. Therefore, Parking Services 
have produced this year's report with the most recent information. The relevant 
statistics will be added to the website once released by TPT. 

1.3 The report needs to be visible to members of the public. Parking Services will 
place it on the Council’s website.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the panel notes the content of the Parking Services Annual Report 
2017 -18.

3 Explanation

3.1 The Parking Services Annual Report 2017-18 includes the following information:

a) PCN Statistics:
Number of PCNs
Where they have been issued (towns and villages)
Top ten roads
Contraventions Codes
Cancellations
Car parks

b) Appeals and Challenges:
Benchmarking against all Local Authorities in Hertfordshire 

c) Financial Information
Income generated 
Car park income
Cost of running the service/contracts

Page 75

Agenda Item 10



Implications

4 Legal Implication(s)

4.1 The introduction of the Traffic Management Act 2004 legislation made it a 
requirement for all authorities responsible for parking enforcement, to produce an 
annual report which includes specific information relating to parking matters.

5 Financial Implication(s)

5.1 There are no financial implications inherent as a result of this report

6 Risk Management Implications

The only risk related to this proposal is non-compliance of the requirements set 
out on the Traffic Management Act 2004.

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1 There are no Security and Terrorism implications in relation to this report.

8 Procurement Implication(s)

8.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the content of this 
report.

9 Climate Change Implication(s)

There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in 
this report.

10 Link to Corporate Priorities

10.1 The subject of this report is linked to the following Councils Corporate Priorities:

 Deliver effective parking services
 Effectively communicate what we do

11 Equality and Diversity

11.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies

Name of author (Vikki Hatfield – 01707 357555)
Title (Parking and Cemetery Services Manager)
Date (21 May 2018)

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Page 76



Parking Services Statistical Information 2017/18 
 
The table below provides the total number of parking tickets (PCNs) which have 
been issued in Welwyn Hatfield since 2011: 

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

PCNs 8,367 9,023 8,392 11,573 12,044 
 
When a PCN is issued, the recipient can either pay or make an informal 
representation asking us to cancel, citing relevant information and evidence for us to 
take into consideration. If the PCN is paid promptly, within 14 days from the date of 
issue, a 50% discount applies. 
 
Representations received within the initial 14 day period can result in a PCN being 
cancelled, but if a decision is made not to cancel the PCN we allow a further 14 days 
from the decision date for payment at the 50% reduced rate. 
 
If the decision is made not to cancel the PCN, following a formal representation, the 
Owner can take matters further if they wish and make an appeal through an 
independent adjudication service, known as the Traffic Penalty Tribunal (TPT). 
 

On street/off street by percentage 
On-street       84% 
Off-street      16% 

 
PCN statistical information  
 

PCNs issued by location 
 

Area Number 
Brookmans Park 793 
Cuffley 855 
Digswell 147 
Hatfield 5357 
Welham Green 180 
Welwyn 565 
Welwyn Garden City 4038 
Little Heath 109 
Total  12,044 

 
Number of parking spaces within Welwyn Hatfield  

 
  Total Area m2 Estimated Bays 
Disabled Parking 614.2 45 
Free Parking 9802.9 713 
Voucher/Permit 50445.5 3669 

Page 77



2 
 

Loading 205.8 15 
 
 
 

PCNs issued by contravention 
 

On-Street Number 
01 - Restricted Street 5 minute observations 2002 
01 - Restricted Street Instant ticket 211 
02 - Loading / Unloading 918 
12 - No valid permit  3773 
14 - Electric charging place 35 
16 - No valid Permit 77 
19 - Displaying invalid permit 29 
22 – Re-parked 66 
23 - Wrong class of vehicle 359 
24 - Not within the bay markings 4 
25 - Parked in loading Place 43 
26 - Special enforcement area (dropped kerb - driveway) 40 
27 - Adjacent dropped footway (pedestrian dropped kerb) 324 
30 - Parked longer permitted 1702 
40 - Disabled bay no badge 380 
45 - Taxi rank area 56 
47 - Restricted bus stop 24 
48 - Outside school 16 
61 - HGV on Footway 48 
62 – Wheels on the footpath (VPO) 9 
70 - Restricted loading area 5 
Total 10,121 

 
 
Roads in which the most parking tickets were issued: 
 

Road Number of PCNs 

Howardsgate, Welwyn Garden City 937 

Comet Road, Hatfield 642 

Roe Green Lane, Hatfield 630 

Parkway , Welwyn Garden City 570 

Wigmores North, Welwyn Garden City 444 

De Havilland Close, Hatfield 316 

Stonehills, Welwyn Garden City 305 

Page 78



3 
 

Days Mead, Hatfield 264 

Meadow Croft, Hatfield 251 

St. Albans Road West, Hatfield 219 

Total 4,578 

 
Council Car Parks (Off-Street) 
 
Parking tickets issued in the following car parks: 
Hatfield Welwyn Garden City 
Dog Kennel Lane Campus East Lower 
Kennelwood Lane Campus East Upper 
Link Drive Campus West 
Lemsford Road Cherry Tree 
The Common Hunters Bridge (MSCP) 
 
In 2017, the council enforcement team started to monitor two car parks in Cuffley. 
These are the short stay car park in Maynards Place and the long stay in Sopers 
Road. 
 

 
Off- Street (Car Parks)   

80 - Longer than permitted 355 
81 - Restricted area 36 
82 - Expiry of paid time 22 
83 - No Valid P&D ticket 30 
84 - Additional payment made 7 
85 - In permit bay with no valid permit 429 
86 - Parked out of markings 218 
87 - In disabled bay no blue badge 212 
90 - Re-parked 35 
91 - Wrong class of vehicle 2 
92 - Parked causing obstruction 1 
99 - Pedestrian Crossing 54 
Total 1,401 

 
 
 

Warning Notices  
W01 - WN restricted street 16 
W12 - No valid permit 441 
W80 - Longer than permitted 2 
W82 - Expiry of paid time 8 
W83 - No Valid P&D ticket 19 
W85 - In permit bay with no valid permit 3 

Page 79



4 
 

W86 - Parked out of markings 32 
W90 – Re-Parked 1 
Total 522 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PCN cancellations 

 
Cancellation reason Number 
Discretionary Reasons 208 
CEO Error 94 
Disabled Badge Holder 265 
No Trace From DVLA 215 
DVLA Returned No Trace - Foreign Registration 46 
Explanation Accepted 302 
Equipment Failure 16 
Lines & Signs Defective 7 
Proof Of Loading/Unloading Provided 16 
Police Vehicle 10 
Unenforceable Address 6 
Vehicle Breakdown 31 
Vehicle Outside England & Wales 4 
Void As Per PA Notes 67 
Valid  permit produced 99 
Prevented From Issue 7 
Spoiled Before Issue 164 
Vehicle Drive Away 128 
Total 1685 

 
Appeals and Challenges 
 
Parking tickets which are appealed or challenged is managed by East Herts District 
Council. All this information is collected by Traffic Penalty Tribunal (TPT). This can 
take some time to come through therefore, the details below are the most up to 
date information (the last column related to all Herts Council information for 
2014/15: 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 All Herts  
PCNs Appealed 26 26 14 23 12 333 
PCNs Issued 9,791 8,070 7,227 8533 8,283 129,390 
Rate of Appeal 0.27 0.32 0.19 0.3 0.1 0.2 
Not contested 5 

19% 
0 

0% 
2 

14% 
0 

0% 
2 18.2% 64 20.6% 

Page 80



5 
 

Allowed by 
Adjudicator 

8 
31% 

10 38% 7 
50% 

7 30.4% 2 18.2% 72 23.2% 

Total Allowed 13 50% 13 50% 9 
64% 

7 30.4% 4 36.4% 136 
43.7% 

Refused by the 
Adjudicator 

13 50% 12 46% 4 
29% 

16 16.9% 7 63.6% 175 
56.3% 

Contest Order 0 
0% 

0 
0% 

1 
7% 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

Witness 
Statement 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

1 8.3% 22 
6.6% 

Awaiting decision 0 
0% 

1 
4% 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

0 
0% 

 
 
PCNs paid at discount - 7169 
PCNs paid at full charge or higher - 833 
PCNs cancelled or written off – 1577 (13%) 
*correct to the 17 May 2018 
 
Financial Information  
 

Income (by financial year) 
 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Car park Income £1,282,006 £1,050,403 £1,183,863 £1,171,293 £1,091,448 
Season Tickets £304,702 £295,564 £307,412 £311,034 £280,135 
PCN Income £245,000 £240,414 £254,152 £305,490 £340,386 
Dispensations £1,240 £1,998 £1,016 £1,200 £0 
Permit Income £32,444 £36,405 £38,234 £50,483 £55,227 
Totals £1,865,392 £1,624,784 £1,784,677 £1,839,500 £1,767,196 

 
Income by Car Park 

 
Looking at the Councils three main charging car parks in Welwyn Garden City, they 
have generated the income outlined below. This income includes tariff charges, 
season ticket sales and other related charges. 
 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Hunters Bridge £515,448 £650,470 £692,041 £758,100 £702,441 
Campus West £305,738 £339,283 £416,572 £328,494 £332,010 
Campus East Lower £313,585 £353,419 £368,062 £390,583 £331,884 
Osborn Way* £429,340 - - - - 
Totals £1,564,110 £1,343,172 £1,476,675 £1,477,177 £1,366,335 

*This car park reverted back to the control of Network Rail in April 2014 
 

Page 81



6 
 

Cost of Enforcement 
 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

East Herts £129,000 £125,000 £125,747 £157,973 £186,326 
NSL £160,000 £236,200 £236,638 £298,927 £307,916 
CP Plus £388,000 £373,711 £395,390 £347,675 £346,806 
Parking Services £187,500 £174,280 £164,000 £165,000 £166,000 
Total £864,500 £909,191 £921,775 £969,575 £1,007,048 

 
East Herts District Council manage the enforcement contract on behalf of Welwyn 
Hatfield Council. They provide the back office support for all the appeals are 
received by members of the public who have received a PCN within Welwyn 
Hatfield. 
 
NSL provide the enforcement officers who patrol the borough and issue to vehicle 
that contravene the parking restrictions. The team consist of one supervisor and six 
civil enforcement officers. They patrol the parking restrictions on foot or in a car, 
these patrols are carried out Monday – Saturday 7.30am-8.30pm, two Sundays and 
one evening patrol per month. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CP Plus manage our council car parks, and there responsibilities are: 
 

• Monitoring and maintenance of the ANPR cameras and payment machines 
• Issuing Parking Charge Notices using an approved operator scheme 
• Dealing with appeals to Parking Charge Notices 
• Monitoring and maintenance of the CCTV equipment in the car parks 
• Litter picking in all of our car parks 
• Providing and managing other methods of payment (text, season tickets, 

online) 
• Providing and managing the on-line payment system (Swish-park) 
• Patrolling and carrying out routine checks in all of our car parks 
• Reporting other maintenance issues (pot holes, damage) to the Council 
• Monitoring and maintenance of the signage and lining 

 
Parking Services are the team employed by Welwyn Hatfield to carry out 
consultation for changes to parking restrictions. They also respond to customer 
enquiries/complaints on parking related tasks. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Part I
Item No: 0
Main author: Vikki Hatfield
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL COMMITTEE – 7 JUNE 2018
CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURAL 
SERVICES)

Proposed Parking Services Resource and Work Programmes 2018-20 

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Throughout the year, the Council receives many requests for parking restrictions 
and parking improvements, this can be through a number of different channels. It 
is important to manage the public’s requests and expectations. These requests are 
recorded so they can be considered by this Panel for a future work programmes. 
There are currently over 500 requests, of which 152 will be addressed with the 
current work programme. Leaving 349 requests to be considered for future work 
programmes.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 Due to the size of the projects and the time they can take to complete. The Panel 
recommend to Cabinet, extending the work programme from one year to two 
years, 2018-2020.

2.2 That the Panel recommends to Cabinet the inclusion of Peartree Ward and Hatfield 
car parks to be added to the 2018-20 work programme. 

2.3 The Panel recommends to Cabinet that an additional 2 year fixed term post is 
created to assist Parking Services. 

3 Explanation

Current Work Programme 2017/18

3.1 The Council agreed the current work programme in 2017-18, which consists of 
the following wards:

Handside
Hatfield East
Hatfield Central
Part of Hatfield West
Essendon and Old Hatfield

3.2 Each of the above Wards in the 2017-18 programme are at different stages of the 
consultation process, as highlighted at the time, the completion of each project is 
dependent on the outcome of the consultation process, but at present it is highly 
probable these projects will not be completed before the end of 2019/20. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 11



- 2 -

3.3 The table below shows Parking Services current list of outstanding requests from 
residents, businesses and Councillors for changes to the current parking 
restrictions by Ward. Please note that the majority of these will have been added 
before the Ward boundaries were changed:

Ward No of requests
76

Hatfield West (29 on current WP)
Handside 63
Sherrards 53
Peartree 44
Hatfield South 41
Hatfield East 36
Howlands 27
Hollybush 25
Hatfield Central 24
Welwyn West 25
Welwyn East 20
Pansanger 14
Hatfield Villages 10
Haldens 6
Welham Green 5
Brookmans Park & Little Heath 4
Northaw & Cuffley 2
Total 504

*Highlighted Wards are on the 2017/18 work programme

Current Parking Services Resource – Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO)

3.4 The current TRO team has four officers who are responsible for the introduction or 
amendment of parking restrictions, which include a number of consultations in the 
Wards/areas, as prescribed by the Parking Services Work Programme.

3.5 Invariably, consultations take time as they are dependent on the outcome of the 
resident’s feedback. Residents in some areas engage with the Council during the 
process, however in other areas the team receive less than 25% response rate. 
This makes looking at possible solutions a more challenging process, as we are 
working with limited information. 

3.6 In areas which have a less than 25% response rate, a detailed report would be 
presented to CPPP for the Panel to recommend a way forward. This could be to 
continue with all or parts of the consultation to the statutory stage, or to close the 
project and for the team to continue to the next Ward/area on the work programme.

3.7 The Council has recognised that parking pressures and concerns in the borough 
have increased in the last 5-10 years. There are a number of reasons for this, one 
of which is the increase in the number of vehicles which are using and parking on 
the borough roads, which were never designed to accommodate such numbers. 

Page 86



- 3 -

3.8 Looking at the current work programme as agreed in 2017-18, and Parking 
Services resources, it is estimated that it will take at least two years to complete 
all the projects. To widen the current work programme, the Council would require 
additional resources (Parking Officers). 

3.9 In February 2018, the Council agreed to provide additional resource to employ an 
additional Parking Officer so as to enable the Parking Services team to complete 
the current work programme of 2017-18 earlier. This would enable the team to 
move onto other areas within the Borough which are requesting changes to the 
current parking regime. 

3.8 The recruitment of a Parking Officer, can prove to be a lengthy process to find the 
best candidate, who meets the relevant experience at the level needed to be able 
hit the ground running. Recent experience has shown to be successful in 
employing a Parking Officer; we have had to look at the relevant characteristics 
(such as attention to detail, using their initiative etc.) to find the right candidate to 
train up to the standard required.

3.9 In February it was suggested £100,000 for two additional officers for a fixed term 
one year contract. However, due to the challenges facing the Parking and 
Cemetery Service Manager when recruiting for a Parking Officer, there are two 
options for consideration:

Resource Team 
numbers

Progression on the work Programme

Current team 4 FTE* At least two years**
Additional FTE for 1 year 5 FTE At least two years
Additional FTE for 2 years 5 FTE Possibly begin in Peartree in 2019/20

*FTE – Full Time Employee
**As mentioned within this report, it is extremely difficult to provide exact timescales due to this 
been dependent on the outcome of each consultation which is carried out.

3.10 With additional resource, officers’ recommendation would be for the Peartree Ward 
to be added to the work programme, in anticipation of projects in the programme 
of 2017-18 being far enough advanced to allow, preliminary work to begin. 

3.11 Although Sherrards has more requests for changes, there is an existing single 
yellow line in operation in many areas, whereas there is currently limited protection 
in residential roads surrounding the Broadwater Road developments.

3.12 This recommendation is proposed as officers consider the Peartree Ward to be 
the next most pressing area that requires a parking review due to the re-
development of the old Shredded Wheat site and other locations in the Peartree 
Ward, many of which are changing from commercial to residential properties, 
which have different parking requirements. It is thought these new residential 
areas may have adverse impact on residential roads surrounding the area. Many 
of which have little or no parking controls against non-residential parking, some of 
which have already reported issues with commuters. 

3.13 In addition to Peartree, the Hatfield town centre car parks will also need to be 
included in the next work programme. This is due to the continuing re-development 
of the Hatfield town centre and the proposed construction of the multi-storey car 
park (MSCP) in The Common. Interim changes will need to be introduced to 
manage parking during the construction phase of the car park. This will include 
adding a deck to Lemsford Road car park and amending the existing parking 

Page 87



- 4 -

restrictions in the other car parks. The changes will help shoppers to find parking 
within close proximity to the local shops and businesses during the construction 
phase of the MSCP.

3.14 Due to the size of the projects and time they take to complete, it is highly probable 
they will not be completed by the end of 2018/19. Therefore, the recommendation 
is to extend the length of the work programme from one year to two years. 

Implications

4 Legal Implication(s)

4.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

5 Financial Implication(s)

5.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Parking Services revenue and capital budgets.

6 Risk Management Implications

The risks related to this proposal are:

6.1 If an additional Parking Services officer is considered the best way forward to 
increase the scope of the work programme in 2018-19, then CPPP has to be 
mindful that recruitment of a suitable candidate can take a few months.

6.2 If the Panel agree with the recommendations within this report, the consultation 
will start in Peartree Ward as soon as resource and current projects are completed. 
It is envisage this will be in 2019/20, however this is dependent on the outcome of 
the numerous consultations which have yet to take place in Wards on the current 
work programme.

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications associated with the content 
of this report.

8 Procurement Implication(s)

8.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

9 Climate Change Implication(s)

Key climate factors have been considered and are not thought to be applicable 
for this report. Parking Services do not envisage a change in the number of 
vehicles parking in the vicinity.

Page 88



- 5 -

10 Link to Corporate Priorities

10.1 I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to three of the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities:

 Protect and enhance the environment – Deliver effective parking services;

 Help build a strong local economy – Revitalise our town centres and other 
shopping precincts and;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

11 Equality and Diversity

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out.  The creation    of 
Traffic Regulation Orders requires further statutory consultation.  An EIA will be 
completed during this process.

Name of author (Vikki Hatfield – 01707 357555)
Title (Parking and Cemetery Services Manager)
Date (29 May 2018)

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME, DOUBLE YELLOW LINES AND VERGE PROTECTION ORDER IN CROP COMMON AND CECIL CRESCENT AREAS, HATFIELD
	Appendix A - Area 3
	Appendix B - Objections
	Appendix C - Notice of Intent

	9 UPDATE ON 2017/2018 PARKING SERVICES WORK PROGRAMME
	Appendix A - Parking Restrictions 2017-18.docx
	Appendix B - Parking Improvements 2017-18
	Appendix C - Traffic Regulation Order consultation process

	10 PARKING SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT
	Appendix A - Parking Services Statistical Information 2017-18 updated.pdf

	11 PROPOSED PARKING SERVICE RESOURCE AND WORK PROGRAMMES 2018/2020



